
APPROVED 9/8/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 1 of 4 

August 11, 2022 

  

MINUTES 

TOWN OF TOPSHAM 

PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

IN PERSON IN THE DONALD A. RUSSELL MEETING ROOM 

AND ON LINE VIA ZOOM –AUGUST 11, 2022,  6:30 P.M. 

______________________________________________________ 

  

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Spann 

    Kerri Bickford 

Ronald Bisson 

    Larry Brann 

    Dan Flaig 

    Scott Libby 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Joshua Spooner 
 

STAFF PRESENT:  Hap Stelling, Planning Director and Kate Burch, Planner 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL  
 

Chair Spann called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. The Recording Secretary took the roll call 

and noted that everyone on the Board was present in person, except for Mr. Spooner who had 

been excused. The meeting was also available on Zoom for anyone wanting to view the 

meeting or make comments.  

 

WELCOME NEW PLANNING DIRECTOR 

 

Chairman Spann introduced and welcomed Hap Stelling, Topsham’s new Planning Director.  

 

B. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JULY 28, 2022 MEETING 
 

 Motion was made by Mr. Brann, seconded by Mr. Bisson, and it was  

 

  VOTED 

  To approve the minutes of the July 28, 2022 meeting as written in the Second Draft. 
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. BUILDING SYSTEMS, LLC HAS SUBMITTED A PROPOSED 11-LOT SINGLE-

FAMILY SUBDIVISION AT 715 AUGUSTA ROAD, TAX MAP R10, LOT 79 

 

Adrienne Fine, P.E. from Terradyn Consultants, LLC represented the applicant, Jeff Munn, 

Building Systems, LLC, via Zoom.  

 



APPROVED 9/8/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 2 of 4 

August 11, 2022 

It was noted that this is before the Board for preliminary approval of an 11-lot single family 

residential subdivision. The 19.55 acre parcel is located at 715 Augusta Road and borders 

the Town of Bowdoin.  The project site consists of lawn/meadow, wetlands and woods and 

is zoned R-3.  Its current use taxation is pasture.  
 

All abutters have been duly notified of the project.  Ms. Fine said the proposed homes will 

be single family.  Current buildings on the parcel will all be removed as part of the project.  

Wetlands include approximately 2.7 acres. No vernal pools are involved. Weymouth Brook 

is located to the south and across the street.  The road will be approximately 930 feet long 

and comes to a dead end.  As there is no opportunity to extend the road, it will end in a 

hammerhead which will extend 50-feet in each direction.  The road will be named Halcyon 

Drive and will be a public road, owned by the town after its completion meeting ordinance 

standards.  The road will be 20-feet wide with 3-foot shoulders.  There will be a shared 

driveway (Wesley Way) to lots 6 and 7 access and a shared mailbox.  A Maintenance 

Agreement has been written for the shared driveway. An entrance permit has been 

approved by the Department of Transportation. Sight distance is 540-feet to the north and 

over 1,200 feet to the south on the 50 mile per hour road. Approximately 400 to 700 yards 

of blasting is anticipated.  Application for the blasting will be brought before the Planning 

Board for approval.   

 

 The two wetland crossings will have 36-inch culverts buried 12-inches deep. Each lot will 

be at least 1-1/2 acres with 150-foot frontage.  Lot 6 and 7 will gain frontage off the main 

road. The project will be served by private wells and private septic fields. Utilities will be 

underground, connecting from a pole on the Augusta Road.  A full Stormwater Report has 

been submitted as well as a Permit by Rule.  These are under review by the Town’s Peer 

Reviewer. DEP Tier I will be filed for the wetland impact. The 75-foot stream setback will 

be maintained as shown on the plan.  

 

Questions/comments from the Board was held following Ms. Fine’s presentation.  Dead 

end road standards were read aloud by Planner Burch. Response to question if the Fire 

Chief accepted that the shared driveway narrowing to 15-feet across the wetlands (20-feet 

wide elsewhere) to the 55-foot hammerhead each side with an easement extending 20-feet 

beyond that.  Memo is in file from Fire Chief McLaughlin saying “The additional 

requirements at the end of the road will be an acceptable compromise for the 57-feet of 15-

foot width in a portion of the shared driveway.”  It was also noted that no parking in the 

shared driveway and that lot owners must construct a driveway off the turnaround for 

access and parking.  This will be noted on the subdivision plan and site layout plan.  

 

Town staff recommended a site walk to show where vegetation will be preserved and Board 

members were in agreement to do so.  Board member Libby noted the importance of 

maintaining the stream buffer and that wording of same should be included in the contract. 

Ms. Fine said appropriate wording will be included in the sale of the lots.  Question was 

asked if any lights are planned for the entrance off the Augusta Road and near the hammer 

head.  Ms. Fine responded that no street lights are proposed. 

 



APPROVED 9/8/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 3 of 4 

August 11, 2022 

 

Response to question of where the culverts are located was that lots 1 and 2, 4 and 7 and 9 

and 10 will have culvert crossings.  Board member Libby asked if the applicant had 

considered a cull de sac rather than a hammerhead, as it seemed a better approach.  Ms. 

Fine responded that a cull de sac wasn’t possible as it would infringe into the wetland area.   

 

Question was asked is a Road Association would be formed for the road until it was 

accepted by the Town.  Ms. Fine said it depended on the timing.  She said the road will be 

built to Town standards as soon as possible to be accepted by the Town.   

 

Board member Bickford asked if the homes will be stick built or could mobile homes be 

placed on the lots.  She said she was concerned with the look of the end product.  Mr. Munn 

responded that the homes will be conventional 2,500 to 3,000 square foot homes. Board 

member Flaig asked if there will be a covenant to the lots.  Mr. Munn responded there 

would be stating the minimal square feet but have not planned that part yet.  Mr. Flaig 

expressed concern that the shared driveway was so close to the hammerhead and asked to 

make sure there is a clear marking showing what the Town would be responsible for.  

 

Comment was made that on lot 6 and 7 it appears that the setback for lot 7 looks like the 

buildable area is restricted with setbacks. Also, it appears that the wetlands go through the 

lot on lot 10 and question was asked if the leach field could go in the front.  Ms. Fine said 

that all wetlands will be filled and is part of the DEP permit.  Board member Brann asked 

if a waiver was needed where the road drops to 15-feet wide by the hammerhead.  Planner 

Burch said a waiver would not be needed as the Fire Chief is good with the 15-feet.  Board 

member Bisson asked if there will be guard rails in the area of the culverts.  Response was 

that guard rails will be installed where requested by the peer reviewer.   

 

With no further questions to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared open.  Speakers 

included: 

 

Dick Lagasse, 720 Augusta Road – Mr. Lagasse said he will be impacted quite a lot by 

this project. Said he was told he had to have 3 acres in the R-3 zone and asked how the lots 

proposed could be only an acre and a half.  He expressed concern that his well may be 

impacted by the project.  Ms. Fine responded that the scientist who did the test pits had no 

concerns and that the lots are at a lower elevation from Mr. Lagasse’s residence. Mr. 

Lagasse said he has a negative attitude about the project and that he moved to the area to 

be in the country and now the city is coming to him.  He said the project will bring a lot of 

traffic to the area and his driveway is directly across the road from the entrance to the 

project.  He expressed concern regarding what the project will do to his property value and 

also is concerned that the project will bring crime to the area. 

  

Curt Neufeld – Mr. Neufeld said it appears that Lot 9 and10 are right up against the 

wetland buffer lines.  Lot 8 is also against the lines and potential buyers need to be told 

what they can and cannot build because of the wetlands.   

 



APPROVED 9/8/22 

  

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES                           Page 4 of 4 

August 11, 2022 

 

With no further comments to be heard, the Public Hearing was declared closed. 

 

The  Board expressed concern with lots buffering the stream. Planner Burch noted that this 

is a preliminary hearing and the Board can set conditions at the future meeting if they feel 

they are necessary.  Mr. Neufeld was asked to email his concerns to the Board and he 

agreed to do so.  The next meeting of the Board is on September 8, 2022.  It was agreed to 

hold a site walk on that date to start at 5:30 p.m. and members of the public were invited 

to attend. The Planning Board meeting will follow the site walk to start at 6:30 p.m. 
 

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Bisson, and it was unanimously 
 

VOTED 

 That the application for preliminary plan approval submitted by Building Systems, 

LLC for Tax Map R10, Lot 79 be approved in accordance with ⸹191-3 and ⸹191-5 of 

the Topsham Code, with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant shall revise the submitted plan set to provide for the necessary sheets 

for the final plan approval. 

2. The applicant shall respond to any technical comments identified by the Town’s 

Peer Review Engineer. 

3. The applicant shall respond to and resolve all staff comments. 

4. The applicant should clearly indicate on the final plans where existing vegetation 

will be preserved and stream buffers retained.  These areas, along with the perimeter 

area of undisturbed wetlands should be flagged for the site walk planned.  

 

D. ADJOURN   

 

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Ms. Bickford, and it was unanimously  

 

VOTED  

To adjourn the meeting at 7:30 p.m.   

Respectfully submitted,  

      

Patty Williams, Recording Secretary    


